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Invitation to Tender (ITT)
Tender Instructions and Information:  
DELTA PROGRAMME: POLICY DIALOGUE PROJECT

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This Invitation to Tender (ITT) sets out the information which is required by the Authority in order to establish and assess in detail, the solution approach, quality and legal aspects & abilities of the suppliers and their proposed solutions in combination with the costs of delivering these solutions. 

These instructions are designed to ensure that all tenders are given equal and fair consideration.  It is important therefore that you provide all the information asked for in the format and order specified. All enquiries, questions or requests for clarification by Tenderers should be submitted to
Please note that references to the "Authority" throughout these documents means the Secretary of State for Foreign and Commonwealth Affairs or his representatives in the Foreign and Commonwealth Office (FCO).

Bidders should note that direct or indirect canvassing of any Ministers, public sector employee or agent by any potential bidder concerning this requirement, or any attempt to procure information from any Ministers, public sector employee or agent concerning this ITT may result in the disqualification of the Potential Provider from consideration for this requirement. 
No information contained in this ITT, or in any communication made between the Authority and any Bidder in connection with this ITT, shall be relied upon as constituting a contract, agreement or representation that any contract shall be offered in accordance with this ITT. 
The Authority reserves the right to change without notice the basis of, or the procedures for, the competitive tendering process or to terminate the process at any time.  Under no circumstances shall the Authority incur any liability in respect of this ITT or any supporting documentation. Once the tender process is complete the Authority may still undertake further approval to move to contract.
Bidders will remain responsible for all costs and expenses incurred by them, their staff, and their advisors or by any third party acting under their instructions in connection with this ITT. For the avoidance of doubt, the Authority shall have no liability whatsoever to Potential Providers for the costs of any amendments, changes, discussions or communications. 
The object of the ITT process is to establish and assess the approach and  quality aspects and abilities of the suppliers proposed solutions in combination with the potential costs of delivering these solutions. 

In assessing the answers to the evaluation criteria, the Authority will be seeking evidence of the Potential Provider’s suitability to perform the services in terms of economic and financial standing, technical and professional ability. Qualification criteria will be a combination of both financial and non-financial factors.
1.1  
THE REQUIREMENT
A Statement of Requirement (SOR) is included as Annex A  and should be fully understood before bidders complete the tenders. 
1.2 INDICATIVE TIMETABLE

Set out below is an INDICATIVE procurement timetable. This is intended as a guide and, whilst the Authority does not intend to depart from the timetable, it reserves the right to do so at any time.

	Date or Target Date
	Activity

	08.06.2016
	ITT issued

	20.06.2016
	Deadline for submission of clarification questions

	24.06.2016
	Deadline for the Submission of Tenders

	28.06.2016
	Bid Evaluations and Internal Assurance complete

	w/c 30.06.2016
	Award Decision



Amendments

The Authority reserves the right to amend the enclosed tender documents at any time prior to the deadline for receipt of tenders.  Any such amendment will be numbered, dated and issued via the portal. In the event of amendments, the Authority may at its discretion extend the deadline for receipt of tenders.

By issuing this invitation the Authority is not bound in any way and does not have to accept the lowest or any tender and reserves the right not to award any contract or to accept the whole or any specified part of the tender
1.4.
AUTHORITY NAMED CONTACT

The Authority’s named contact point for the procurement is:

Odunayo Akinse
If the Authority considers any question or request for clarification to be of material significance, both the query and the response will be communicated, in a suitably anonymous form, to all bidders invited to tender.
Bidders should follow the instructions outlined below when completing this ITT. 
All questions MUST BE answered in English.
The information supplied will be checked for completeness and compliance with the instructions before responses are evaluated.
 In the event that there are insufficient tenders deemed satisfactory, the Authority reserves the right to terminate the procurement and where appropriate re-advertise the procurement
Failure to provide the required information or make a satisfactory response to any question, or supply attachments referred to in responses, within the specified timescale, may mean that a bid is rejected at the absolute discretion of the Authority. 
Bidders must be explicit and comprehensive in their responses to this ITT as this will be the single source of information on which responses will be scored and ranked.  Bidders are advised neither to make any assumptions about their past or current supplier relationships with the Authority nor to assume that such prior business relationships will be taken into account in the evaluation procedure. 

Bidders should answer all questions as accurately and concisely as possible in the same order as the questions are presented. 
Word and page limits: Where a limit is provided your response should not exceed the limit. Any information over the limit will not be evaluated. Diagrams, tables and graphics will be included in the limit.
Document formats: The supported formats for tenders are Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, Microsoft PowerPoint and PDF.
Commercials: A spreadsheet entitled Pricing Model should be completed as part of the proposal. 

1.6 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (FROM BIDDERS OR AUTHORITY)
The Authority expressly reserves the right to require a Bidder to provide additional information supplementing or clarifying any of the information provided in response to the requests set out in this ITT. 
Bidders must review the documentation in detail and are encouraged to request clarifications early following ITT publication. This will allow the Authority sufficient time to answers to any questions and for bidders to take the response in to consideration before the closing date and time. 

The Authority reserves the right to amend the enclosed tender documents at any time prior to the deadline for receipt of tenders.  In the event of amendments, the Authority may at its discretion extend the deadline for receipt of tenders.

By issuing this invitation the Authority is not bound in any way and does not have to accept the lowest or any tender and reserves the right not to award any contract or to accept the whole or any specified part of the tender.
1.7 CONSORTIA AND SUB-CONTRACTING
Consortia and Sub-contracting are allowed under this ITT. Details should also be provided in relation to the proportion of any contract awarded that the Bidder proposes to subcontract. 
1.8
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

In accordance with the obligations and duties placed upon public authorities by the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (the ‘FoIA’), all information submitted to the Authority may be disclosed in response to a request made pursuant to the FoIA.  

In respect of any information submitted by a Potential Provider that it considers to be commercially sensitive the Potential Provider should:

1. clearly identify such information as commercially sensitive;

2. explain the potential implications of disclosure of such information; and

3. provide an estimate of the period of time during which the Bidder believes that such information will remain commercially sensitive.

Where a bidder identifies information as commercially sensitive, the Authority will endeavour to maintain confidentiality. Bidders should note, however, that, even where information is identified as commercially sensitive, the Authority might be required to disclose such information in accordance with the FoIA. Accordingly, the Authority cannot guarantee that any information marked ‘commercially sensitive’ will not be disclosed.

1.9
SUBMISSION OF COMPLETED INVITATION TO TENDERS
You must submit your completed ITT by e-mail to  Odunayo.akinse@fco.gov.uk   no later than 24th June 2016 Completed ITTs may be submitted at any time before the closing date Please note that completed ITTs received after the closing date may be rejected at the absolute discretion of the Authority.  

1.10 DETAILED TREATMENT OF RESPONSES
Bidders are expected to provide full answers to the questions posed. 
Scoring is split between 70% Technical (700 points) and 30% Commercial (300 points).  The scoring method by section is provided below and provides guidance on how responses to questions will be evaluated. Provide your response as one document for technical split by each question (see Annex B), and one excel document for commercial (Annex C).
Technical Question Scoring Scale 
	Score Key
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Assessment
	Score
	Interpretation
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Good
	4
	Satisfies the requirement with minor additional benefits.  Above average demonstration by the Tenderer of the understanding and evidence in their ability/proposed methodology to deliver a solution for the required supplies/services.  Response identifies factors that will offer potential added value, with evidence to support the response.  

	Acceptable
	3
	Satisfies the requirement.  Demonstration by the Tenderer of the understanding and evidence in their ability/proposed methodology to deliver a solution for the required supplies/services.  

	Minor Reservations
	2
	Satisfies the requirement with minor reservations.  Some minor reservations of the Tenderer's understanding and proposed methodology, with limited evidence to support the response. 

	Serious Reservations/Non compliant
	1
	Satisfies the requirement with major reservations.  Major reservations of the Tenderer's understanding and proposed methodology, with little or no evidence to support the response.  

	Unacceptable/Non compliant
	0
	Does not meet the requirement.  Does not comply and/or insufficient information provided to demonstrate that the Tenderer has the understanding or suitable methodology, with little or no evidence to support the response. The response may be disqualified as non-compliant 


Technical Evaluation Criteria
	PART A -  Context
	 Points

	What is your assessment of the situation in the Niger Delta and how it is likely to develop over the funding period?  Max one page.
	50

	PART B -  Methodology
	 Points

	Provide an overview of your project and detail your activities and how it fits with the statement of requirements. One page.   
	75

	Problem statement:  What is the problem that you will address?  What will be your theory of change to address this problem?  include this in Annex B
	75

	What is the strength of available evidence underpinning the proposal?  What are the gaps in evidence that the project will need to address to improve the effectiveness of the intervention?  On the basis of what assessments have you designed your proposal?  How have insights from potential beneficiaries shaped the intervention? One page.
	75

	Please indicate how the project will address the following cross-cutting themes:

· How will the project be “conflict sensitive” and consistent with the principle of “do no harm” throughout the implementation period?

· How will the project ensure gender mainstreaming and how will it be compliant with the UK International Development (Gender Equality) Act 2014?  The proposal should answer the following specific questions: (i) How will the project contribute to reducing gender inequality? (ii) How will the project take into account gender differences in needs? (iii) How will the project address barriers that could prevent girls and women from accessing assistance? (iv) How will the project affect relations between girls / women and boys / men?

· How will the project promote better data collection, management and analysis?

· How will you maintain flexibility?  For example, what opportunities exist to scale the project up or down?  What options are there to move the project towards a more developmental approach if that becomes appropriate?  What is the exit / transition strategy?  

Max 3 pages.
	75

	Accountability, Coordination and Partnership
	 

	13. How will you engage with community-based organisations and individuals to enhance accountability? How will you deal with complaints and grievances? How will you engage with State governments? Max 2 pages.
	50

	Please provide an analysis of top level risks affecting the proposal and how these risks will be managed.  Provide as a risk matrix table. Max 1 page.
	50

	How will you ensure that the project delivers results?  How will your monitor and evalulate the results?  We will expect results data to be provided on a quarterly basis.  One page.
	75

	Resources
	 

	What is your current presence in the region and in the area of intervention?  What relevant activities are you currently implementing?  What is your current staffing set-up ad how will this change to implement this project? Max one page.
	75

	Will implementation be outsourced or direct?  If outsourced, to whom, what is their role, and is this an existing partnership?  The proposed team , including any consortia or partnering, should be included as a project organogram/flow chart. Max 1 page.
	50

	Provide the CVs of the key staff involved in the project, maximum of 3, and one page per staff.
	50


Total technical points = 700
Commercial Questions Scoring and Evaluation criteria:

The Commercial scoring is based on information provided in the Pricing Model (Excel spreadsheet) and is worth 30% (300points). 
The most financially attractive offer will win the full weighting. Scores for bids other than the most financially attractive bid will be awarded on an inverse percentage difference from the most financially attractive offer. 

1.11 CONFIDENTIALITY AND PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION
All information supplied by the Authority to you must be treated in confidence and not disclosed to third parties except insofar as this is necessary to obtain sureties or quotations for the purposes of submitting the tender.  All information supplied by you to the Authority will similarly be treated in confidence except:

1) that references may be sought from banks, existing or past clients, or other referees submitted by the Tenderers 

2) for the disclosure of such information with regard to the outcome of the procurement process as may be required to be published in the Supplement to the Official Journal of the European Union, in accordance with any UK legal requirements e.g. the Freedom Of Information Act 2000 etc, or EC directives or elsewhere in accordance with the requirements of UK government policy on the disclosure of information relating to government contracts

1.12
WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER 

You are advised that nothing herein or in any other communication made between Authority, or its agents and any other party, or any part thereof, shall be taken as constituting a contract, agreement or representation between Authority and any other party (save for a formal award of contract made in writing by or on behalf of Authority) nor shall they be taken as constituting a contract, agreement or representation that a contract shall be offered in accordance herewith or at all.
Annex A: Statement of Requirements

STATEMENT OF REQUIREMENTS

CSSF NIGERIA: DELIVERY OF A MORE STRATEGIC POLICY DIALOGUE WITH NIGERIAN STAKEHOLDERS ON THE DELTA.

Background

Nigeria is one of the UK’s highest priorities in Africa and its importance to the UK continues to grow.  But despite having Africa’s largest economy, Nigeria still has a quarter of the continent’s extreme poor and its potential for development faces a range of challenges.  Of these, political and ethnic unrest in the Niger Delta is one of the most significant. 

The Conflict, Security and Stability Fund (CSSF) is the UK Government’s fund for preventing conflict and instability.  CSSF seeks to tackle conflict upstream both to enhance sustainable development in Nigeria itself and to reduce the potential for threats such as terrorism, organised crime and illegal migration from reaching the UK. The Nigeria CSSF portfolio for the UK financial year (FY) April 2016 to March 2017 comprises four programmes and involves the work of various UK Government departments. 

The Niger Delta programme, led by the Department for International Development (DfID), is one of these and has allocated funding of £1.9m for FY16/17. The Delta programme seeks to support the development of Nigerian federal and state Government capability to manage conflict, improve security for its citizens in the Delta Region and prevent community and political violence, including violence against women.  It also aims to enhance the UK’s ability to influence Nigerian decision makers and to achieve a more strategic policy dialogue with Nigerian stakeholders on the Delta.

 In the financial year 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 up to £250,000 (two hundred and fifty thousand British pounds) is available through the Delta programme for a Supplier(s) to help meet these aims and help prevent a return to conflict in the Delta.
Objective

The specific objectives and priorities of the CSSF Niger Delta programme are to:

· Advocate for political dialogue and conciliation; 

· Support transparent and accountable electoral processes; 

· Advise on a coordinated economic response to the challenges faced by the Delta;

· Enhance agricultural markets, infrastructure, and oil sector transparency; and 

· Support conflict early warning and early response mechanisms, including for violence against women. 

· Improve maritime security.

Scope
i. A supplier is required to provide constructive ways ahead of forthcoming local elections in the Delta region; the possible changes that will be made to the Amnesty programme for ex-militants; the tension between the state and Federal authorities as they seek to develop the Delta region, economically; and the relationship between the International Oil and Gas companies, the State government, the Federal government and the security forces in the Delta region.  

ii. The supplier should also provide insight and advice on how to support politically the clean-up process envisaged by the Ministry of the Environment, and how to encourage support for and advance a meaningful Nigerian-owned plan for economic development in the Delta region, making best use of the UK’s reach at Federal and State level in Nigeria. 

iii. The supplier should retain the flexibility to respond to ad hoc demands for research as potential flash-points around conflict emerge. 

iv. The supplier should work closely with and complement the Nigeria Stability and Reconciliation Programme (NSRP)’s work in the Delta region which is funded by the CSSF. NSRP is engaged with both government and civil society groups in three Niger Delta states and supports functional networks that work on analysis, advocacy and capacity building.

The Supplier will be required to deliver the following outputs:

Output 1. 
Better informed HMG approach 

1. The project will commission research and assessments to heighten understanding of key issues in the Niger Delta. Issues identified will have to be refined and the approach will need to remain highly flexible to grasp opportunities as they arise. Initial concepts include: challenges of forthcoming elections; feasibility assessment of clean-up process by Ministry of Environment; impact of Amnesty Programme draw-down; stakeholder/political economy analysis of Niger Delta; impact scenarios on options available. Issues identified will be discussed within HMG and with some key external actors to ascertain appropriateness and avoid duplication. 

2. Ensure HMG has a higher level of understanding of the political economy at State and Federal level and identifies potential blockages and opportunities. 

3. Provide HMG with benchmark metrics to measure future work against.

4. HMG will retain as much flexibility as possible to enable us to react positively to issues or opportunities that might emerge.    

Output 2. 
Enhanced UK influence.

1. Research and policy papers will be made available and discussed with key Nigerian institutions. 

2. Coupled with HMG diplomatic work and some of DFID programming aimed at promoting a cohesive development framework for the Delta, this will enable the UK to influence specific institutions that are playing a role in the Delta (e.g. Ministry of Niger Delta, Niger Delta Development Commission, Amnesty Commission, Ministry of Environment, State Governors…) 

Skills and Expertise required:

· Strong and demonstrable track record of understanding the political dynamics in the Delta region over at least the last 5-10 years

· Excellent networks of contacts on the ground with the ability of growing that network to conduct research and assessments that will allow the UK to understand with a good degree of accuracy the challenges and potential solutions to diffuse conflict and provide constructive ways ahead;

· Good understanding of the UK’s approach to stabilisation;

· Experience of delivering strong results despite very challenging security conditions as well as complex political environments;

· Strong governance, financial management and reporting systems;

· Office presence/platform in the Delta region and relevant licences to operate

Governance: All proposed projects are to be reviewed and agreed by the British High Commission (BHC) Abuja, FCO Procurement team and the Niger Delta programme lead)

The Supplier will report directly to BHC, but shall also be accountable to the programme leads (DFID). The supplier will be required to develop quarterly reports and hold regular meetings with all parties to discuss progress on activities. Other key stakeholders will include the Federal Government of Nigeria, particularly the Ministry of Niger Delta, the Ministry of Environment, the Niger Delta Development Commission, and the Amnesty Commission. It will also be delivered in partnership and collaboration with the governments of Bayelsa, Delta and Rivers states, the local government councils in 12 target LGAs, key security actors like the Nigeria Police, the Civil Defence Corps and the Joint Task Force, national and state election management bodies, the National Oil Spills Detection and Regulatory Agency (NOSDRA), ministries of women affairs, state legislatures, partner media organisations, oil companies, universities, community based associations and non-government organisations (NGOs).

Dependencies

All necessary equipment and support to deliver the services shall be the responsibility of the Supplier. This includes but is not limited to accommodation, flights, security, life support and other logistical support as necessary.

Procurement

Any equipment procured will be subject to an approvals process and in line with FCO procurement rules. The Supplier shall be responsible for ensuring delivery of equipment in the identified areas.

Monitoring and Evaluation

The bidder should demonstrate their proposed methods of verification and monitoring of projects.  A separate evaluation framework (including a results framework) should also be set out. 
Intellectual Property Rights

All plans developed shall belong to the British High Commission Abuja, who may wish to share the material with other stabilisation actors.

Payment 

The payment mechanisms specific to this Contract (whether milestone based, monthly in arrears or, if necessary, on a time and materials basis; but with advance payments excluded) will be agreed with the winning bidder depending on the nature of their proposal. The successful bidder should demonstrate how they will deliver value for money and mitigate fiduciary risks in relation to this project; as well as suggest how we can maximise our impact with limited resources. Any/all invoices and receipts may be requested for auditing purposes and should be provided when requested; this will include any third parties that will be contracted. 

Budget

The available budget for the 16/17 financial year is £250,000
Timeframe

The project will be delivered for a period of nine (9) months (ending 31 March 2017). The potential start date for the contract is July 2016. This includes submission of the final report and evaluation. Specific milestones will however be determined during the scoping phase of the contract.  There is a potential for continued funding into subsequent financial years if the Delta programme as a whole is extended.

Duty of Care

Duty of care for all Staff and community participants in the projects shall fall to the supplier. It will be the responsibility of the Supplier to provide the appropriate level of security, life support and insurance as necessary (included within the overall budget). The supplier will need to be able to demonstrate that they have put in place appropriate security measures to enable the Staff to operate safely in a challenging security environment.
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